

agencies' responses and disseminates both its findings and the requested records to the American public to inform them about "what their government is up to."

4. Defendant U.S. Department of Homeland Security is an agency of the U.S. Government and is headquartered at 245 Murray Lane SW, Mailstop 0485, Washington, DC 20528. Defendant has possession, custody, and control of records to which Plaintiff seeks access.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

5. On July 16, 2024, Plaintiff electronically served a FOIA request on the U.S. Secret Service ("Secret Service"), a component of Defendant U.S. Department of Homeland Security, seeking records related to President Donald Trump's security detail in the time leading up to the July 13, 2024 attempt on his life in Butler, Pennsylvania. Specifically, the request seeks:

All records including emails, email chains, email attachments, text messages, video or audio recordings, photographs, outlook calendars, meeting minutes, correspondence, statements, letters, memoranda, reports, briefings, presentations, notes, summaries, requests for assistance, between or among the Office of the Secretary and / or Office of the Deputy Secretary, Department of Homeland Security and the U.S. Secret Service, referring or relating to any potential increase or addition of protective resources to President Trump's protective security detail.

6. The request was limited to include records from November 1, 2022, to the present.

7. Plaintiff's FOIA request included a request for waiver of search and duplication fees as Plaintiff is a "representative of the news media."

8. The Secret Service issued no acknowledgment letter but updated the SecureRelease™ Portal to indicate the request had been received on July 16, 2024, assigned reference number 2024-HQFO-01999, and put on the "simple" track.

9. As of the date of this Complaint, the Secret Service has failed to make a final determination on Plaintiff's FOIA request, produce the requested records, or otherwise demonstrate that the requested records are exempt from production.

COUNT I
(Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552)

10. Plaintiff realleges paragraphs 1 through 9 as if fully stated herein.

11. Defendant is in violation of FOIA.

12. Plaintiff is being irreparably harmed by Defendant's violation of FOIA, and Plaintiff will continue to be irreparably harmed unless Defendant is compelled to comply with the law.

13. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.

14. To trigger FOIA's administrative exhaustion requirement, Defendant was required to make a final determination on Plaintiff's request and administrative appeal by August 13, 2024, at the latest.

15. Because Defendant failed to make a final determination on Plaintiff's request within the time limits set by FOIA, Plaintiff is deemed to have exhausted its administrative appeal remedies.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court: (1) order Defendant to search for any and all records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA request and demonstrate that it employed search methods reasonably calculated to uncover all records responsive to the request; (2) order Defendant to produce, by a date certain, any and all non-exempt records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA request and a *Vaughn* index of any responsive records withheld under claim of exemption; (3) enjoin Defendant from continuing to withhold any and all non-exempt records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA request; (4) grant Plaintiff an award of attorneys' fees and other

litigation costs reasonably incurred in this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E); and (5) grant Plaintiff such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: August 29, 2024

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Paul J. Orfanedes

PAUL J. ORFANEDES

D.C. Bar No. 429716

JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.

425 Third Street SW, Suite 800

Washington, DC 20024

Tel: (202) 646-5172

Email: porfanedes@judicialwatch.org

Attorney for Plaintiff